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RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF GRESNCCK.

ROMAN FORTLET, LURG MOOR, Immediately S. of Greenock on the S.

shore of the Firth of Clyde the land rises steeply to an elevation
of 800 feet O. D. and then developes into a stretch of rough moor-
:land about three gquarters of a mile wide, two isolated areas of
which rise over the 200 feet contour to the peaks of Crawberry
and Corlick Hills. The section of this moorland that lies
between the roads from Greenock to Kilmacolm on the E. and to
Loch Thom on the W., and is distant about one mile 8. of Greenock,
measures two and three guarter miles in length and is divided
from E. to W. into five parts by a system of stone walls. The
second enclosure from the E.,, Lurg Moor, which is almost rect-
scangular in shape, measures about 800 yards from N. to S. by
aboult 950 yards btransversely, and the fortlet is situated 250
vards SE. of the NW. corner. It lies just within the 800 feet
contour on a small promontory and commands an uninterrupted view
northwards over the narrow coastal plain now occupled by Greenock
and Port Glasgow and over the Firth beyond. To W. and WNW.,
too, the prospect is extensive, and includes Tower Hill, Gourock;
- but the hills N. of Loch Thom‘and the low rocky ridges of the
adjacent moors limit vision to SW., S., SE. and NE, To the E.,
however, there is a gap through which can be seen the high ground
of Devol Moor, two miles away, and of Barscube, four miles
further on. This fortlet and the fort at Whitemoss (No. ) are
not intervisible.

The fortlet (Fig. ), which is in a good state
of preservation and appears to have remained almost unmolested
since originally falling into disuse, 1s rectangular on plan
with rounded angles. Although the shorter axis lies on a line
diverging about 15 degrees E. of N. the structure is described
below, for convenience, as if it had been set N. and S, The

interior measures about 67 feet from N. to 8. by about 87 feet

transversely/



transversely within a turf rampart about 30 feebt thick which
now stands to a maximum height of 2 feet 6 inches. A single
ditch, 6 feet in width and 3 feet 6 inches in depth where best
preserved, lies immedlately outside 1t, and the entrance, 14
feet in width, is in the centre of the 5. side. The fortlet
is covered with heather and coarse grass, and the slope of the
site is such that the N. side of the interior lies 8 feet lower
than the S. A mound of uneven ground occupies the BSW. guarter
of the fortlet, and there is a boggy patch, which held water
at the date of visit, in the NW. part. The E. half is flat.
The size and plah of the fortlet place it among
the numercus similar structures of Antonine date which occur in
North Britain.I

I. E.g. Aspects of Archaeology in Britain
and Beyond (1951), 203 - 302.

295736. ii. S.W, UN. 17 November 1952,



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF EAGLESHAM.

MOUND, BALLAGIOCH HILIL. This mound is situated a quarter of a
mile WNW. of Greenfieldbfarmhouse on the Eastern extremity of the
level summit-plateau of Ballagioch Hill at a height of a 1little
over 1,000 feet O. D. It measures about 70 feet in diameter
and stands to a maximum height of 4 feet above ground level.
A few boulders which may represent the remains of a kerb or revet-
tment protrude through the turf at widely-spaced intervals on
the perimeter, and what appears to be a small quarry 1lies in the
SE. gquadrant. The surface of the mound is uneven and has been
used in modern times as a site for bonfires.

The structure is probably a denuded cairn, but
the possibility that it might be the ruin of a circular stone

fort cannot be ruled outb.

537501. xix. ©N.W. (Unnoted). 6 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF EAGLESHAM.

FORT, DUNWAN, Dunwan Hill, which rises to a height of 980 feet

O. D. two and a half miles SW. of Eaglesham, stands near the
northern 1imit of the ftract of hilly marshland which occupies
the southern part of Eaglesham parish. From the summit plateau
the SE., NE. and NW. flanks fall steeply to the immediate base
of the hill; while to the SW., after a similarly steep drop of
15 feet, a longer and easlier slope descends to marshy ground
through which runs a nameless tributary of the Blackwood Burn.
The fort, which occuples the summit plateau, 1s triangular on
plan (Fig. ) and measures 260 feet from NE. to SW. by 160 feet
t?ansversely within a wall or a terrace-rampart, The latter is
now represented only by outer facing stonesg which appear spora-
:dically on a line about 12 feet outside and as much below the
NE., E. and SE. arcs of the presgent rim of the plateau. The
entrance, 10 feet wide, is situated at the SE., at the apex of
the triangle, Thé interior is covered with coarse pasture and
ratches of rushes and contains what may be the remains of two
hut circles. One of these, situated 50 feet NE. of the en-
ttrance, consists of a shallow trench about 2 feet in width
enclosing an area which measures about 26 feet in diameter. A
causeway aboult 4 feet in width in the N. arc probably represents
the entrance. The other feature is an arc of a similar trench
measuring 33 feet in length and forming part of a circle about
22 feet in diameter.

Immediately oubside the entrance to the fort a
glightly hollowed track runs down the steep slope for a distance
of SO feet to die out where the more gently sloping SE. flank
of the hill starts. At this point the line of the track is

flanked by the ends of two ditches, 10 feet in width and 20 feet

apart,/



apart, and immediately outside those are the ends of a low
stony mound, spread to a width of about 13 feet, which must
represent a very decayed ocuter rampart. The gap in the rampart
is crossed by a modern but ruinous dyke which runs along the
top of the rampart and, in the centre of the gap, is Jjoined at
right angles by another dyke that runs up the slope from the SW.
To the SE. of the entrance gap the mound soon becomes nothing
more than a scarp and the ditch a terrace, and together these
features run in an arc SE. and E. on to the S. flank of the hill.
For the first 90 feet they are accompanied by the dyke, which
afterwards turns off SSE. down the hill. The terrace having
lapsed after a distance of 150 feet; a crest line representing
the rampart can be followed for a further 70 feet before it
fades on the steep rocky SSE. flank of the hill. To the NW,
of the entrance gap the scarp of the rampart 1s accompanied
NNW., for 50 feet by that terrace and for 70 feet by the dyke.
Thereafter the crest line traverses the NW. flank of the hill
for 200 feet before fading out on the sieep rocky slope. After
a gap of 250 feet, during which it is possible to see only the
faintest traces of the crest line, this can be distinguished
again on the NE. flank of the hill and followed thence E. and
SE., for 100 feet, at which point there is a gap about 25 feet
in width. Beyond thié the crest line runs on for 150 feet
before becoming lost on the E. flank of the hill. Examinat ion
of the air~phot6graphs on which the fort was first observedI
I. 541/4/527/4016-7.

suggests that this crest line did originally encircle the hill
completely.

The siting of a rampart so far down the slope
is a striking feature; at the points 200 feet on either side of

the entrance in the SE. arc the vertical distance from the rim

‘"of/



_S-

of the summnit plateau to the crest-line is B0 feet, while at
the opposite end of the site the horizontal separation is
160 feet.

| The surface of the ground at the immediate base
of the hill is confused with tumbled boulders, drainage trenches,
field boundaries and, on the HN., by the ruins of bulldings.
Among these are the fragmentary remains of what might possibly
have been a third rampart, distant about 70 feet outside the
gsecond and running round at least the NW., NE. and SE, of the
bottom of the hill. But the possibility that this belonged
to the ruined bulldings which are set just within i1t cannot be

ruled out.

547489. xix. N.W. (Unnoted) 5 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.

PARISH OF EASTWOQOD.

EARTHWORK, POLLOK GROUNDS. This structure is situated close

to the north side of the foad through North Wood at a distance
of three quarters of a mile NE. of Pollok House. The site

lies just within the 100 feet contour and occupies the E. end of
an almost imperceptible ridge from which the ground slopes down
gently to the N. The earthwork is oval on plan (Fig. ) and
measures 100 feet from WNW. to ESE. by 85 feet transversely
within a ditch with an earthen bank on either side. The main
feat@re of the defences appears to be the ditch, the bottom of
 the WSW. arc of which is 17 feet in width and lies at a depth

of 5 feet 6 inches below the crests of the banks on either side.
A modern drainage trench 2 feet in width runs round the whole
length of the bottom of the ditch and an outlet for the water
thus collected has been cut through the N. arc of the outer bank.
Until this breach was made the ditch must have been a wet moat.
The banks are now slight and intermittent, the remaining stretches
rising to a height of oﬁly a few inches above ground level and
being spread to a width of up to 27 feet. The entrance, in the
ESE. arec, is formed by a broad causeway through the ditch. The
inner and outer banks united round the heads of the ditch on
either side of the causeway to leave a gap between them which
must originally have measured about 10 feet in width. The
whole structure is planted with trees and bushes, and the
interior is featureless. It-is-not- a pre~historic work, anad
probably dates from mediaeval*times;l

p g T P.SvAS. 1xXXV-(1950=51)., -146=157%

557627. xiii. N.W. (Unnoted). 7 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.

PARTSH OF HOUSTON.

FORT AND MOUND, LAW HILL. Law Hill is a rocky knoll which is

the central feature of the high ground on the left bank of the
River Gryfe immediately N. of Bridge of Weir. It attains a
height of 300 feet O. D., and when clear of trees would command
extensive views in all directions. The flanks of the hill slope
steeply (own to N. and W. and less steeply to the S., while on
the E. the summit area merges with a gentle decline which falls
without interruption to the plain below. The fort (Fig. ) is
pear~-shaped on plan, measuring internally about 165 feet in
length by up to 50 feet in width within the ruin of a stone wall,
This is now represented by stretches of rubble, up to 5 feet in
width, lying along the edge of the summit area and by a few outer
facing stones embedded in the flanks of the hill about 5 feet
lower down.

A large part of the E. half of the fort is occupied
by an oval mound 8 feet in height, the flat summit of which
megsures 30 feet in length by a maximum width of 25 feet. To E.
and W. the flanks slope steeply down to the level of the interior
of the fort, and the base of the mound is 53 feet in width; to
N. and S. they descend over the line of the wall of the fort to
merge with the slopes of the hill. The top of the mound is
featureless except for a decayed flagstaff,

The mound 1is constructed of earth and rubble, and
is certainly more modern than the fort, but it is not possible
to say whether it is a mediaeval structure or a more recent

prospect mount.

384666. vii. S.W. (Unnoted) 6 May 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTSH OF KILMALCOLM,

FORT, CRAIGMARLCCH WOQOOD. This fort is situated on an

eminence which stands in the gap between Inockmountain on the
E. and Devol Moor on the W. and commands the route southwards
from Port Glasgow. It is distant one mile and a half 'S; of
the 8. shore of the mouth of the River Clyde where this meets
the Firth of Clyde, and a guarter of a mile WNW,of the house
marked on the Ordnance Survey maps as East Kilbride but to
which the name Craigmarloch has been transferred from the
abandoned house 330 yards to the SW. The knoll upon which
the fort stands is one of é group of four each of which attains
an elevation of a little over 500 feet O. D. No natural
obstacles bar approach to the summit area from the E., but
broad shallow gullies adjoin it to NNE. and SSE.and the steep
rocky flanks of the knoll hinder access from the SW., W. and
NW.

The fort (Fig. ) is subrectangular on plan
with rounded corners, and measures 160 feet in length by 85
feet in breadth within the substantial ruin of a stone wall.
Thise now consists of a mound of largé stones and boulders
which stands to a maximum height of about 3 feet 6 inches. and
is spread to a width of abéut 12 feet. No facing sbtones can
be seen in §;§g, but it is estimated thét‘the wall was origi-
tnally about 8 feet or 10 feet in thickness. An enbtrance
6 feet wide pierces the WiNW. arc and a ragged breach of uncer-
:tain character, 15 feet in extent, interrupts the ESE. arc.

| A stretch of the N. section of the wall 130 feet

in length forms the chord ¢of a D-chaped annexe 60 feelt in
breadth. The arc consists of a ruined wall, similar in
appearance to the wall of the fort but only about 6 feet in

thickness,/



thickness, which lies on the SSW. slope of the gully NNE. of
the site. A gap 50 feet in length in the NW. arc of this wall
may have included an original entrance to the annexe but there
is no indication that direct communication with the fort was
ever provided. The floor of the annexe rises 16 feet from
NNE. to S3E&W.

A stretch of ruinous wall 125 feet in length and
about 6 feet thick runs from E3E. to WNW. 70 feef beyond and
30 feet below the S. section of the wall of the fort. Its
E. end rests on an oubtcrop which marks the W. termination of
the gully SSE. of the fort while its W. end fades away on the
steepening SW. flank of the knoll. In addition, faint traces
of what may have been walling (4. and B on plan), formed by a
few boulders which appear to be in situ, occur at short dis-
stances beyond either end of the stretch of wall. They suggest
that another annexe might have adjoined the fort to the S., but
this is uncertain. Masses of vitrified matter appear in the
WNW, stretch of the wall of the fort in the vicinity of the
enirance. No other patches were observed elsewhere on the
perimeter, and it is possible that these represent the result
of the turning of a wooden gateway..

The interior of the fort is planted with trees
and the only feature is a modern stone-built sunken fox-trap

which lies in the S. quarter.

344718, vi. N.E. (Unnoted). 5 May 1954,



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF KILMATLCOLM.

EARTHWORK, BLACKSHOLM. This earthwork (Fig. ) is situated

on level ground 170 yards E. of Blacksholm farmhouse and a
gimilar distance W. of the right bank of the Gryfe Water, at a
height of a little under 300 feet 0. S. The remains, which
are very slight, consist of a low circular platform 78 feet

in diameter within a shallow ditch 27 feet in width and an
outer bank 17 feet in width. Faint traces of what might have
been a second ditch and bank can be seen outside the latter.
The N, and NE. arcs have been damaged by cultivation. The
entrance is in the NW. arec. The situation and character of
the work suggest that it is more likely to have been continued
in mediaeval than prehistoric times. It is locally known as

the Covenanters' Camp.

338703, vi. N.E. (Unnoted). 6 lMay 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.,

FPARTSH OF HOUSTON,

DeFes=
EneLt9 A | EAST ROWANTREEHILL. This structure is situated on

low-lying land a quarter of a mile SE. of East Rowantreehill
farmhouse at a height of 300 feet O. D. To E., 8. and W. the
approaches are level, but immediately N. of the site the ground
rises 100 feet in a distance of 350 feet. The structure (Fig.

is almost circular on plan, measuring about 85 feet in diameter

within g rubble=cored sitone wall 7 feet & inches thick. Numerous

facing stones remain in gitu on either side of the K., N. and W.
arcs, coune of them measuring as much as 4 feet in length and
sbanding up ﬁo 3 feet 6 inches above ground. The entrance, 7
feet in width, lies in the NE., arc, and immediately inside it is
a level area 60 feet in length alined from NNE. to SSW. and
bounded on the E. by the enclosure wall and on the W. by a low
rocky scarp. A few feet W. of this there is a crescentic scarp
17 feet in length. The rest of the interior is rocky, uneven
and featureless.

The situation suggests that the structure cannot

I
be a fort, as indicated on one Ordnance Survey May , while its

I. 1l - inch Sheet 72.
character is not that of an earthwork, as it 1s defined on
I
another . It is comparable in appearance to the structures on

I. 6 ~ inch Sheet vii. N. W,
I
Hownam Law and at Buchtrig, in Roxburghshire , and may have
I. Inventory, 526, 328.

served an agriculftural purpose in mediaeval times.

369689. vii. N.W. ("Earthwork"). 6 May 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.,

PARISE Or KILBARCHAN,

FORT, MARSHALL MOOR. This fort stands at a height of 500 feet

C. D. onva conspicuous rocky ridge 1,000 yards WNW, of lMeikle
Burntshields farmhouse. It is oval on plan (Pig. ) and
measares 320 feet in length by about 150 feet transversely
within a ruinous stone wall. The NW. flank of the ridge 1s a
steep and rocky siopé alohg’the crest of which no traces of
‘defences can be seeﬁ, bﬁt the SW. arc of the wall springs from
it to run SE. and E. fo? a»distaﬁce of 200 feet across the level
spine of’the ridge to the crest of the gentler SE. flank. This
stfetch of the wall consists of a mound of rubble about 7 feet
“in Widfh along the outer margin of which a dozen facing stones
protrude through the turf. The SE. section of the wall runs
thence for 300 feet along the SE. flank of the ridge in the form
of a line of rubble which becomes very thin at the NNE. where
the slope of the hill increases. For two-thirds of its length
this section lies beneath an increasingly prominent rocky crest
which developes above it as the width of the level spine of the
ridge decreases. The NE. section of the wall crosses the ridge
in a direct line in the form of a scattered band of rubble 160
feet in length and ends on the crest of the steep NW. face.

The ertrance, 9 feet in width, lies in the SW. arc of the wall.

The interior is covered with coarse pasture and is featureless.

372626, xi. N.W. (Unnoted). 8 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTSH OF KILIALCOLM,

EARTHWRK, CASTLE HILL, SOUTH GIBBLASTON. This structure is

situated at a height of 400 feet 0. D. on a rocky eminence
close to the right bank of the Gotter Water, a quarter of a
mile W. of South Gibblaston farmhouse. It is oval on plan
(Fig. ) measuring about 220 feet by 150 feet within a very
denuded rampart. A length of about 250 feet of this, com-
sprising the 8W., W., NW. and N. arcs, takes the form of a

low grass-grown mound spread to a width of about 14 feet, but
the remainder appears only as a scarp. A gap in the SE. arc
probably represents the entrance. The interior is uneven and

featureless,

344661, vi. S.E. (Unnoted). 8 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF KILMALCOLM,

FORT, HIGH CASTLEHILI:. This fort i1s situated at a height of

456 feet C. D. immediately SW. of High Castlehill farmhouse,
occupying the summit area of a little rocky promontory which
forms the NW. extremity of a broad low ridge. Thus, to SWe, W,
and NW. the sifte is flanked by steep rocky slopes which rise to
a height of about 15 feet above the level of the surrounding
land, while to SE. it merges directly with the level surface of
the ridge. The extremely Wa%&ted condition of the remains is
probably the result of very thorough stone-robbing. The fort
is trianguiar on plan with rounded corners (Iig. ), measuring
100 feet in length by 75 feet in breadth within a stone wall
now represented by & low and scattered band of rubble about

8 feet in width.,  The SW. and NW. arcs of the wall lie along
the crest of the flanks of the promontory while the NE. section
lies back from the crest of the NE. slope and the SE. section
runs athwart the broad spine of the ridge. A row of four set
stones which probably formed part of the outer face of the wall
remains in situ at a point 5 feet outside the crest of the NW.
flank of the promontory. The entrance is represented by a gap
7 feet wide in the SE. arc. A fragmentary outer line of
defence runs from a point 55 feet ESE. of the entrance to SW.,
W, and NW. for 170 feet to merge into the SW., flank of the
promontory. This consists first of two stretches of stoney
bank, 50 feet and 60 feet in length respectively and each spread
to a thickness of 10 feet, separated by a gap 20 feet wide in
the middle of which stands a boulder 5 feet in length, 3 feet in
breadth and 3 feet 6 inches in height, Beyond the NW. end of
the longer stretch of bank the line is taken up by a row of

outer facing-stones which runs for 16 feet and is followed by a

gap/



- D -
gap of 14 feet the NW. end of which is marked by a single stone.
It is probable that the whole of the outer line of defence was
originally faced, or kerbed, with set stones and that all the
rest have been removed, while a stretch 40 feet in length has
been entirely obliterated between the existing NW. termination
of the remains and the NE, flank of the ridge.

The interior of the fort is uneven, the S. third
containing a low rocky shelf on the N. margin of which two set
stones may represent the remains of an enclosing wall. The ruin
of a modern stone dyke starts at the 3. corner of the fort and
runs on a sinuous course generally northwards to the NW. arc of
the wall of the fort, turning thence NW, to run down the flank of

the promontory.

350722. iii, S.W. (Unnoted). 6 May 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF LOCHWINNOCIH.

FORT, WALLS HILI., The face of the country in the areas E. of

Lochwinnoch and S. of Kilbarchan is characterised by numerous
isolated outecrops and by irregular hills and knolls the flanks
of many of which are rocky and precipitous. ne of the most
conspilcuocus of these is Walls Hill, a flattish, oval feature
which lies between North Castlewalls farmhouse and the ruined
steading of chth Castlewalls. The summit area, which attains
a height of 750 feet 0. D., measures about 1,600 feet from N. to
S. by about 700 feet transversely. It is bordered for the most
part by steep rocky slopes andé cliffs between 20 feet and 30 feet
in height, except in the SW. where 1t is connected to the ad=-
:jacent land by a slight grass-covered slope. The remains of
a rampart border most of the N. end of the plateau and can be
traced in places along the N. parts of the E. and W. sides
(Pig. )e They probably represent the remains of a conbinuous
rampart which originally bordered the whole of the plateau.
The S. half of the latter is comparatively level and has been
under intensive cultivation, while parts of the N. half, which
is more uneven, have been ploughed and drained. It is diffi-
tcult, however, to see how these processes could have destroyed
much of a rampart which, for most of its length, ran along the
brink of steep slopes and cliffs and would, indeed, have served
as g Tield boundary. Its absence for so much of the presumed
course must rather be due to the matural effects of erosion and
collapse and to robbing.

Along the N. end of the sumit plateau the rampart
congists of a grass-~covered, stony mound spread to as much as
17 feet in width. The height from the inner bottom to the crest
is only a few inches, but that from the outer bottom is up to
2 feet. At half a dozen places rocky ridges which lay on the
course of the rampart have been quarried away both to admit the

rampart/



- 2 -
rampart and to provide materiazl for it. This work is on a con-
tsiderable @cale. An entrance through the W, part of the N.
sector consists of a gap in the rampart 20 feet in width through
which a deep and steep hollow way runs up from the slope outside
to enter for a distance of 30 feet into the enclosure. The ram-
ipart is breached again at a point 200 feet to the E. by a modern
agricultural track which rises slowly upwards across the N. face
of the hill, crosses the rampart obliquely and carries on for
some distance between the latter and the quarried rock which here
lies parallel to it for a distance of 200 feet.

If it is assumed that the whole of the sumit area
was briginally enclosed by the rampart, the structure thus formed
would be the largest hill=fort in the district. It might have
been expected that, in spite of cultivation and the presence of
coarse grass and heather some traces of internal structures would
be visible, especially as considerable parts of the surface of
the N, part of the plateau are Sufficiently irregular not to have
been ploughed but are none the less perfectly suitable for hut-
sites. Although no such structures were visible on the date of
visit or(an the air photographsl, huts have since been discovered

I. 541 A/471, 4009-10.
by excavatiom2 .

2 TGAS.cescc000s
The probability that the rampart was once more substantial and
more extensive may be supported by the names of the hill and of
the adjacent farms, North and South Castlewalls, names which
would certainly not be warranted by the present re?ains. The

situation and the extent of the existing structure justify its

I. Cf. Hownam Law, Inventory of Roxburghshire, No.299.

being described as a fort, but the possibility that it represents

a town or gppidum cannot be ruled out.

411588, xi. S.E. and xv. N, E. 12 July 1954.
("Intrenchment").



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTSH OF LOCHWINNOCH.

HOMESTEAD, KNOCKMADE HILL. This structure is situated on a

rocky ridge that stands out from the gently-sloping ground on the
left bank of the Xaim Burn, at a distance df a guarter of a mile
MNE. of Kaim farmhouse. From its NE, extremity the ridge rises
gradually over a distance of 800 feet to its highest point (623
feet 0., D.), beyond which it slopes gentlykdown for a distance of
200 feet and then terminates with a steep, rocky scarp. The
homestead is situated on the slope SW. of the summit and thus
enjoys protection from the NE. and exposure to 5. and SW. It is
pear-shaped on plan (Fig. e measuring 128 feet by 86 feet
within the ruins of a stone wall some 8 feet or 9 feet thick.
The latter is now represented by several stones of both inner and
outer faces which remain in sifu and by a scattered rubble core.
A mutilated gap in the S. arc doubtless represents the entrance.

An almost circular hut is situated at a point 55
feet NNW. of the entrance to the enclosure. It is represented by
a low, grass-grown stony mound spread to a width of 5 feel and
enclosing an area a little over 30 feet in diameter. It is
broken by an entrance gap 6 feet in width at the point nearest fo
the entrance of the enclosure. Five earthfast boulders forming
an arc 12 feet in length lie in the NW. guarter of the hut.

While the ground in the W. two thirds of the
interior of the homestead is reasonably flat, that in the remaining
part rises steeply, so that the E. arc of the enclosure wall

passes over the summit of the ridge, the point being marked by a

modern cairn.

52618, xi. S.W. (Unnoted). 6 July 1954.

ey



RENFREWSHIRE.

PARISH OF LOCHWINNOCH.

INDETERMINATE REMAINS, CASTLE HITL, EAST BARNATIGH. The sumnmit

of Castle Hill, which attains a height of 566 feet above sea
level and is distant 200 yards 3. of East Barnaigh farmhouse,
consists of a raised flat-topped platform measuring 96 feet in
length from ENE. to WsW. by 40 feet transversely. The flanks
of this area rise from 1 foot to 5 feet above the general level
of the hill-top on all sides except the NNE., where there is a
continuous steep descent from the platform to the base of the
hill some 40 feet below. Three stones set close to the crest
at the WSW. end of the platform appear to be the remains of the
outer face of a wall which once enclosed the platform. A
raised area, Trom 2 feet 6 inches to & feet in height and
measuring 27 feet in length from ENE. to WSW. by 12 feet trans-
:versely occupieg the ENE. part of the summit platform, and a
depression running ENE., from the ENE. end of this onto the open
hillside may represent the position of an original entrance.

The remains are scanty and of uncertain age and purpose.

360631. xl. W.wW. (Unnoted). 8 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.,

PARISH OF RENFREW,

EARTHWORK, COCKLES HILL. The remains of this struciture are

situated at a height of about 40 feet O. D. on a low ridge
which Torms the W. extremity of Cockles Hill. The site is
now included in Renfrew Airport and lies a quarter of a mile
SE. of the administrative buildings which occupy the site
marked as New Mains farmhouse on the O, 5. map. Cn the
surface the earthwork is represented only by a low swelling
in the ground that forms an arc 50 feet in length, but
National Survey air photographslshow that this is part of the
I. 541A/471/3166=7,
N. arc of an oval bank with an external ditch which enclosed

an area measuring about 350 feet from NW. to SE. by about

300 feet transversely.

499660, viii. S.E. (Unnoted). 7 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.,

PARISH OF KILBARCHAN,

FORT, BARR HILL (SITE),. This structure was situated at a

height of 312 feet 0. D. on the summit of Barr Hill, half =a
mile NE. of Kilbarchan. The whole summit of the hill,
including the area once occupied by the fort, has been removed
by quarrying, but some particulars of the dimensions and strue
:ture of the fort can be obtained from the 0. S. map and from

I
the Statistical Account . The fort was D-shaped on plan,

I. xv (1795), 489 footnote.
and measured about 250 feet in length along the chord, which
was formed by the edge of the cliff, by about 160 feet in
breadth. The arc consisted of a stone wall outside which

was a ditch,

408637, xl. N.E. ("Camp"). 7 July 1954,



RENFREWSHIRE.,

PARISH OF PATSLEY.

ENCLOSURE, ROSS HALL MAINS (SITE), A mark representing what

geems to have been an almost circular enclosure appears on an

air-photographzof the field that lies immediately W. of Ross
I. C.U.C.A.P. JI49,

Hall Mains farmhouse. ' The site is 200 yards N. of the right

bank of the White Cart Water on almost level ground at an

elevation of about 70 feet O. D. The mark probably indicates

the line of a ditch which enclosed an area measuring aboutb

250 feet in diameter. A gap in the E. arc may show the

position of the original entrance. No trace now remains on

the surface.

506632, xii, N.E. (Unnoted). 7 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTSH OF KILMATCOLIL.

MOUND, CORLICK HILL. This mound is situated on the swmmit of
Corlick Hill at a height of 995 feet 0. D. It measures 40
feet in diameter, and over pari of its surface the living rock
protrudes through the turf. The presence of a few boulders
set along the perimeter suggests that it may be a denuded

calirn. A concrete post has been set up on the mound.

Y

290729 11. S.W. (Unnoted) 14 July 1954.

5%



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTISH OF LOCHWINNOCH.

INDETERMiNATE REMAINS, DUNCONNEL HILL Dunconnel Hill, a

small steep-szided rocky eminence that forms a conspicuous

. landmark in»a streteh of broken and hilly country, is situated
750 yards N, of Fairhilig farmhouse on the SE. slope of The
Ward. It‘stands‘tb a height of about 50 feet above the
géneral level of the adjoining land except to the S., where a
spur meets the hill at an elevation of only 20 feet below
that of the swmmit. Along the NW., and SE. arcs of the rim
of the flat oval sumit area, which measures 180 feet from
NW., to SE. by 160 feet transversely, there are slighi stony
mounds which probably represent parts of a ruined wall. In
view of the situation, this is more ;ikely to have been an
ancient defensive structure than a modern field=-wall such as

that which crosses the site from NW, to SE.

331595. X. S.E. (Unnoted) 6 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTSH OF PAISLEY,

EARTHWORK, FERGUSLIE HOUSE (SITE). Nothing now remains of

any structure at the place marked "Supposed Site of Camp" on

the 1865 Bdition of the 0. 5. map.



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARISH OF PAISLEY,

EARTHWORK, CASTLEHEAD (SITE). lothing now remains of the

structure marked "CAMP (Remains of )" on the 1865 Edition of

the 0. S. map.

475634, xii. N.W. (Unnoted).



RENFREWSHIRE,

PARTISH OF PATISLEY.

EARTHWORK, DYKEBAR HILL (SITE). Nothing now remains of

the structure which is shown on the 0. S. map as lying on

the NW, slopes of Dykebar Hill at a height of about 140 feet
0. D.

4906624, xii. N.

=

7 July 1954.



RENFREWSHIRE.

PARISH OF PAISLEY.

EARTHWORK, BYRES HILL (SITE). The 0. 5. map marks an

earthwork on the summit of Byres Hill at a height of 178
feet 0. D., but all traces of the structure have been

obliterated by the construction of a golf course.

500648. xii. N.E. 7 July 1954,



RENI'REWSFIRE,

country two miles S. of Barrhéad. The N. part of the hill iz
capped by a craggy and inhospitable knoll rising tc a height
of 668 feet O, D., while the S. part consists of an extensive
rock-strewn plateau the general level of which 1s sane 30 fes
less than that attained by the knoll. These two features ars
connected by a saddle, the central part of whiéh, messuring
about 45 feet in both length and breadth, is level with fhe

~T

plateau. From this,narrow sloping valleys fall away to N«.

83}

- gnd SE., accentuating the separation of the cther two feature
To W.. N&., N. and NE. the rocky flanks of the hill rise verwy
steeply to a height of about 100 feet above the land below,

and to S. a steep grassy slope rises about 40 feet from the
spine of the ridge to the summit plateau. For a short cls-
ttance to the N. of the crest of this slope there is a minor
descent to the general level of the sunmit plateau, the 5. end

of which is thus marked by a slight knoll. The SkE. flank oFf
the hill falls only gradually to merge with the slope which
formé<part of the W, side of the wvalley of the Brock Burn.
The fort (Fig. ) occupies the whele of the
top of the hill, the area enclosed by a ruinous drystone wall
measuring about 630 feet in length by about 330 feet in
breadth. For parts of its length the wall is represented
only by the natural line of the crest of the steep flank of
the hill, with only an inffequent earthfast boulder to indica:
the line. Such is the stretch at the N. extremity of ihe

fort, but in the adjacent NE., sector, the wall appears zs a

[SH]

low stony mound 8 feet to 10 feet in width. This runs for
distance of 50 Teet southwards up to the crestline of the

highest/



- O -

highest part of the knoll; an uneven sub-oval area measuring

about 100 feet in length by 80 Teet in breadth and flianked by =

tal

low rocky escarpment. Traces of the wall then disappear. hut

9

it must have run S. and SSE. as recognisable remaing ag
at a point 200 feet further on. Here, near the 2L, extremity

of a tapering spine of rock which protrudes SE. from the knoll,

a row of large earthfast boulders must rspresent the remsins of
the foundation course of the inner face of the wall. After

- - . -

about 25 feet this row is joined at a distance of 2 Teet on its

'}

E. or cuter side bf a row of similar boulders representing the
grounders of the outer face. The two rows run for £5 feet to
the tip of the tabe ing spine; and where this Jjoins the S5B. valls:
of the saddle the inner row ceases. The couter row can however
be followed across the 10 feet gap which lies between the ﬁip ¢z
the spine and the beginning of a substantial mound which repre-
:sents the next strefch of the wall. The gap is probably the
entrance to the fort, and the fact that the fcoundation of the
outer face of thé wall runs across suggesés that that might havs
besn = OOﬂway cr portal in the wall at this point.

Tne mound , abodt 15 feet in width and up tc 3 szt
6 inches in height, runs S%, fro& the entrance for a distance ¢
60 feét along which no trace of thé inner face of the wall angd
only one stone of the outer face appear. From there outwards,

A

however, for a distance ¢f aboul 400 feel the lowest course

"
o}

This seems

}.-

the outer face are visible almost continucusly.
likely to be the result of the clearance of the face of the wall
to Tacilitate the removal of all but the grcocunders ana firm

=

foundation stones, probably in a search for material Tor buildin:

field boundaries. For a distance of about 300 feet the mound
continues to aprear behind the exposed puter face, It is dirrezu

tlar in size, and its appearance may be a further result of ths

e

gquarrying/



guarrying. After reaching this point the mound dies away ang

the cleared face of the wall runs for a distance of about 100

il

[42]

feet round the 8. face of the slight knoll which ccecupies ¢t 3,
end of the summit plateau. The line of clearance theﬁ ceases,
at a point where the slope is very steep. The wall probably
ran thence up over the ¥, end of the knoll and on tc the crest
of the W, flank of the summit plateau where it reappears at a
distance of 90 feet NiW. of the end of the cleared Tace. Pars:
of the gap is due to the presence of an earthen bank with trace:

of a slight ditch on ifts N, side which crosses the S. extremity

of the fort from WNW. to SSEH. The clearance of the cuber face

W

of the fort wall was carried out at a later date than that of
the construction of the bank, as the cleared

through this.

From its point of reapprearsnce the wall runs

-

N. and NE. round the natural cresht of the flank of the hill,
appearing as an intermittent stony mound with a few conspicuous

-

earthfast boulders. It crosses the Nsi. end ?f the NW. valley
of the saddle, and rejoins the summit Xnoll.

he fort

[~

The summit knoll is thus defended by

)

-

wall on all sides except the SW. where it adjoins the =saddle.

(=8

There is evidence that this side was aise defended, as a line oI
earthfast boulders runs up the NE. side of the NW. valley of ths
saddle &zt é distance of about 10-feet from the bottan of the
steep rocky S¥W. face of the knoll. It sbarts a few yards from
the fort wall and runs for 135 feet to end on the middle of the
saddle. Another line, overlapping the former by 10 feet,
stands right against the foot of the face of the knoll and runs
ESE. along it for 65 feet where it ends at a gully which pre-

o

tsunably reprezents a way up to the knoll. Beyond this peint
2 £

the line is taken up by the foot of the tapering rocky spine

which/



which ends at the KNE. side of the fort entrance. it is thus
posesible that the knoll was designed as a stronghold of defence:

it might have had further walls along the mmrgins of the higher
terraces and the sub=-oval summit srvea referred to above.
Among the numerous large bheoulders which are

abundantly strewn over much of the site are some which appear

3

%o lie in scme order. One such group, forming an L-sghaped
line, 1iesvét the head of the SE. valley of the saddle. The
area oubtside the SS8E. stretch of the fort wall contains a great
many boulders, some of which may have formed parts of walls or
settings, The line of one such is shown on the plan above ths
slope which leads down to the external line of entrance to the
forsé. A distinct line of set sitones does appear, however,
rrotruding through the turd for a length of about 170 feet &t
a distance of sbout 15 feet outside the line of the clearcd
face of the SE. part of the fort wall. The function of this
line is obscure; it might represent part of a reinforcement
of the defences at this point where the line of approach to ths
fort is the least difficult.

The fort is one of the principal monuments of

/}

its kind in the district, and its character suggests that it

in

may be of Dark Age date.

~500559. xvl, N.2. (Unnoted). 19 Karch 1955.



